
City Plan Commission

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to 

the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

Council Chambers, 6th Floor3:30 PMWednesday, February 9, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0071 City Plan Minutes from 1-26-22

City Plan Minutes 1-26-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

22-0072 Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 

for the subject parcel located at 1312 North Division Street (Tax Id 

#31-6-0598-00) from future One and Two-Family Residential land use 

designation to Mixed Use land use designation as shown on the attached 

map and approve the attached Resolution (Associated with Action Item 

#22-0073)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_MaritimeBar_CompPlanAmend#1-22.pdf

InformalPublicHearingNotice_MaritimeBar_CompPlan+Rezoning.pdf

Attachments:

22-0074 Rezoning #1-22 for the subject parcels located at 1312 North Division 

Street (Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) and 336 West Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-6-0599-00), including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of North 

Division Street and West Wisconsin Avenue, as shown on the attached 

maps, from R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General 

Commercial District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District (Associated 

with Action Item #22-0075)

InformalPublicHearingNotice_MaritimeBar_CompPlan+Rezoning.pdfAttachments:

5. Action Items

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 2/4/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20622
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89aa9763-2689-4608-86f6-88ed0ec977f8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20623
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=11105a68-472f-42a8-b348-e92120b058d3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd8d7f4c-718c-4c67-ac5c-252e4d9747c3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20625
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=20529b7c-7498-41a1-bcd1-a9753a9642be.pdf


February 9, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0073 Request to approve Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use 

Map Amendment #1-22 for the subject parcel located at 1312 North 

Division Street (Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) from future One and Two-Family 

Residential land use designation to Mixed Use land use designation as 

shown on the attached map and approve the attached Resolution

StaffReport_Maritime Bar_CompPlan+Rezoning_For02-09-22.pdfAttachments:

22-0075 Request to approve Rezoning #1-22 for the subject parcels located at 

1312 North Division Street (Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) and 336 West 

Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-6-0599-00), including the adjacent one-half 

(1/2) right-of-way of North Division Street and West Wisconsin Avenue, as 

shown on the attached maps, from R-1C Central City Residential District 

and C-2 General Commercial District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use 

District

StaffReport_Maritime Bar_CompPlan+Rezoning_For02-09-22.pdfAttachments:

6. Information Items

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 2/4/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20624
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd6de2cf-5284-4aa5-a874-34d896a82542.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20626
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5045e29e-3494-47e8-8a90-fca0e84643bb.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

City Plan Commission

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed 

to the Community and Economic Development Department, 

920-832-6468.

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, January 26, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Meeting called to order by Chair Mayor Woodford at 3:30 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Palm, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and UitenbroekPresent: 5 - 

Robins and DaneExcused: 2 - 

Others present:

Jared Schmidt, REL

Justin Barnes, Club Car Wash

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

22-0004 City Plan Minutes from 1-12-22

City Plan Minutes 1-12-22.pdfAttachments:

Fenton moved, seconded by Palm, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Excused: Robins and Dane2 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Page 1City of Appleton



January 26, 2022City Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0005 Special Use Permit #1-22 for a car wash located at 3040 East College 

Avenue (Tax Id #31-4-5704-01), as shown on the attached materials and 

per attached plan of operation, to run with the land subject to the 

conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached Resolution 

(Associated with Action Item #22-0006)

ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_3040 E College 

Ave_SUP#1-22.pdf

PublicHearingNoticeNeighborhood_3040 E College Ave_SUP#1-22.pdf

Attachments:

This public hearing was held, and no one spoke on the item.

Action Items5.

22-0006 Request to approve Special Use Permit #1-22 for a car wash located at 

3040 East College Avenue (Tax Id #31-4-5704-01), as shown on the 

attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_3040ECollegeAve_SUP_For01-26-22.pdfAttachments:

Director Karen Harkness read a comment from Alderperson Brad Firkus who was 

having difficulty joining the virtual Teams meeting.  She read his comment into the 

record of the meeting as follows, "The feedback he has been getting from 1/2 dozen 

people or so is that they feel that with three car washes within a 1/2 mile of this 

location, that it is unnecessary to add a fourth one.  It may not be the most valid 

reason to deny, but he wanted to make sure that at a minimum, that his constituents 

had the opportunity to share their opinion."

Fenton moved, seconded by Buetow, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Excused: Robins and Dane2 - 

Information Items6.

Adjournment7.

Uitenbroek moved, seconded by Palm, that the meeting be adjourned at 3:35 

p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Palm, Mayor Woodford, Fenton, Buetow and Uitenbroek5 - 

Excused: Robins and Dane2 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



              CEDD (15010) 

     Reprints - 2 

 

 

CITY OF APPLETON  

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PROPOSED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 

 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the City Plan Commission on 

Wednesday, February 9, 2022, at 3:30 P.M. in Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton 

Street, or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of considering a Comprehensive Plan Future 

Land Use Map Amendment request. 

 

Pursuant to Chapter 12: Implementation of the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-

2030, to consider a request by Two Bucks Only II LLC, owner, and Mach IV Engineering & 

Surveying LLC, applicant, for the parcel located at 1312 North Division Street (Tax Id #31-

6-0598-00) to amend the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map from future One and 

Two-Family Residential land use to Mixed Use land use. 

 

A copy of the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map is available in the 

Appleton Community and Economic Development Department or the Office of the City Clerk from 8:00 a.m. 

until 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  

Feedback can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  Any 

questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at 920-832-6476 or by email at jessica.titel@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

APPLETON, WISCONSIN   CITY HALL - 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

(920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

 

 

RUN: January 25, 2022 

 February 1, 2022 

mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

OF THE 
 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 9, 2022, at 3:30 

P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North 

Appleton Street, for the following proposed Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning requests. 

 

COMMON DESCRIPTION: 

1312 North Division Street (Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) and 336 West Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-6-0599-00) 

 

ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:  1 – Alderperson William Siebers 

 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment Request: 

A Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map amendment request has been initiated by Two Bucks Only II LLC, 

owner, and Mach IV Engineering & Surveying LLC, applicant, pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 66.1001 and 

the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  The owner requests to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use Map for: 

 

• Parcel #31-6-0598-00 located at 1312 North Division Street from future One and Two-Family 

Residential land use to Mixed Use land use. 

 

Rezoning Request: 

A rezoning request has been initiated by Two Bucks Only II LLC, owner, and Mach IV Engineering & Surveying 

LLC, applicant, in the matter of amending Chapter Twenty-three (Zoning Ordinance) of the Municipal Code of 

the City of Appleton for the following described real estate.  The owner requests to rezone: 

 

• Parcel # 31-6-0598-00 located at 1312 North Division Street and Parcel #31-6-0599-00 located at 336 

West Wisconsin Avenue, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of North Division Street 

and West Wisconsin Avenue, from R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial 

District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District. 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development Department.  

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  Feedback 

can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  The Plan Commission 

makes a recommendation to the Common Council who makes the final decision on the matter. 

 

Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at 920-832-6476 or by email at jessica.titel@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   

APPLETON, WISCONSIN    CITY HALL – 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 (920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential to Mixed Use

0 100 200
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
One and Two-Family Residential Mixed-Use



6-0
10

6
6-0

10
5

5-0
781

-15-0782

6-0645

6-0642

6-06416-0640

6-0643

6-0638

6-0602

6-0605

6-0606

6-0
94

1

6-0639

6-0649

6-0646

6-0644

6-0647

6-0648

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0
63

4

6-0
63

8-1

6-0609

6-0610

6-0613

6-0611

6-0608

6-0607

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

6-0942

6-0949

6-0946

6-0945

6-0950

6-0953

5-0778

5-0779

5-0780 6-0
10

1
6-0104

6-0
09

8

6-0
09

7

6-0
10

0

6-0096

6-00936-00945-0
78

1

5-0776

5-0
78

6

5-0
78

4

5-0783 N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

N 
CL

AR
K S

T
W WISCONSIN AV

N 
CL

AR
K S

T

C-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

R-1CR-2

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1B

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
STN 

RI
CH

MO
ND

 ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and 
C-2 General Commercial District to 

C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 Feet
City Plan Commission

2-9-2022



333343 339337345

324336342

13
24

13
18

13
12 13

18
.5

13
24

.5

13
25

-27
13

19
13

19
.5 6-0602

6-0605

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

W WISCONSIN AV

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial District to 
C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

0 50 10025 Feet



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

OF THE 
 

APPLETON CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
Dear property owner(s): 

 

The City of Appleton Plan Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 9, 2022, at 3:30 

P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in Common Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North 

Appleton Street, for the following proposed Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning requests. 

 

COMMON DESCRIPTION: 

1312 North Division Street (Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) and 336 West Wisconsin Avenue (Tax Id #31-6-0599-00) 

 

ALDERMANIC DISTRICT:  1 – Alderperson William Siebers 

 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map Amendment Request: 

A Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map amendment request has been initiated by Two Bucks Only II LLC, 

owner, and Mach IV Engineering & Surveying LLC, applicant, pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute 66.1001 and 

the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  The owner requests to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use Map for: 

 

• Parcel #31-6-0598-00 located at 1312 North Division Street from future One and Two-Family 

Residential land use to Mixed Use land use. 

 

Rezoning Request: 

A rezoning request has been initiated by Two Bucks Only II LLC, owner, and Mach IV Engineering & Surveying 

LLC, applicant, in the matter of amending Chapter Twenty-three (Zoning Ordinance) of the Municipal Code of 

the City of Appleton for the following described real estate.  The owner requests to rezone: 

 

• Parcel # 31-6-0598-00 located at 1312 North Division Street and Parcel #31-6-0599-00 located at 336 

West Wisconsin Avenue, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of North Division Street 

and West Wisconsin Avenue, from R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial 

District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District. 

 

You are being notified as a policy of the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development Department.  

All persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  Feedback 

can also be shared with Plan Commission members via written letter, email, or phone call.  The Plan Commission 

makes a recommendation to the Common Council who makes the final decision on the matter. 

 

Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the Community and 

Economic Development Department at 920-832-6476 or by email at jessica.titel@appleton.org. 

 

 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION   COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   

APPLETON, WISCONSIN    CITY HALL – 100 NORTH APPLETON STREET 

 APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54911-4799 

 (920) 832-6468 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 

mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential to Mixed Use

0 100 200
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
One and Two-Family Residential Mixed-Use



6-0
10

6
6-0

10
5

5-0
781

-15-0782

6-0645

6-0642

6-06416-0640

6-0643

6-0638

6-0602

6-0605

6-0606

6-0
94

1

6-0639

6-0649

6-0646

6-0644

6-0647

6-0648

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0
63

4

6-0
63

8-1

6-0609

6-0610

6-0613

6-0611

6-0608

6-0607

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

6-0942

6-0949

6-0946

6-0945

6-0950

6-0953

5-0778

5-0779

5-0780 6-0
10

1
6-0104

6-0
09

8

6-0
09

7

6-0
10

0

6-0096

6-00936-00945-0
78

1

5-0776

5-0
78

6

5-0
78

4

5-0783 N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

N 
CL

AR
K S

T
W WISCONSIN AV

N 
CL

AR
K S

T

C-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

R-1CR-2

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1B

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
STN 

RI
CH

MO
ND

 ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and 
C-2 General Commercial District to 

C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 Feet
City Plan Commission

2-9-2022



333343 339337345

324336342

13
24

13
18

13
12 13

18
.5

13
24

.5

13
25

-27
13

19
13

19
.5 6-0602

6-0605

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

W WISCONSIN AV

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial District to 
C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

0 50 10025 Feet



 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  2 Bucks Only II, LLC (Parcel #31-6-0598-00, 1312 N. Division Street) and 2X6 Holdings, LLC 

(Parcel #31-6-0599-00, 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue) 

 

Applicant:  Mach IV Engineering & Surveying, LLC c/o Joel Ehrfurth 

 

Address/Parcel:  1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) and 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel 

#31-6-0599-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting to amend the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

Future Land Use Map from the One and Two-Family Residential designation to the Mixed Use 

designation for the property located at 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00).  In conjunction 

with this request, the applicant is proposing to rezone both subject parcels from C-2 General Commercial 

District and R-1C Central City Residential District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District.  The 

requests are being made to establish a uniform Future Land Use Map designation and zoning 

classification for the subject property to allow for a shared parking lot expansion and a patio addition for 

the existing tavern (Maritime Tavern). 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

On March 15, 2017, the Common Council approved/adopted the 5-year update to the Comprehensive 

Plan 2010-2030 and Future Land Use Map.  This plan establishes a vision for future land use, physical 

development, and quality of life in the City and provides a comprehensive set of goals, policies, and 

initiatives to achieve that vision.  The Comprehensive Plan document and the accompanying Future Land 

Use Map also serve as a guide for future growth and development in the City.  Periodically, development 

proposals or changing circumstances within the City may trigger consideration of an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  That is the case for this request. 

 

The property at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue is currently being used as a tavern (Maritime Tavern) and off-

street parking lot.  The property at 1312 N. Division Street previously contained a single-family home that 

was recently razed.  The home was recently purchased by the current owners with plans to construct an 

expansion to the existing parking lot serving Maritime Tavern at 336 W. Wisconsin and constructing an 

outdoor patio onto the tavern. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Meeting Date:  February 9, 2022 

 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  March 16, 2022 

(Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning) 

 

Items:  City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land 

Use Map Amendment #1-22 and Rezoning #1-22 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 2 

 

In conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan amendment and rezoning requests, submittal of an 

application for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) is anticipated to combine the subject parcels into one lot.  

CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City staff.  However, per Section 23-40(b) of the 

Municipal Code, there shall not be more than one zoning district on any parcel of land.  Therefore, 

uniform zoning is needed before the parcels can be combined to accommodate the anticipated 

improvements. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Procedural Findings: When Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning applications are required for the same development project, the respective staff reports are 

consolidated together as one. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The property at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue is currently being used as a tavern 

(Maritime Tavern) and off-street parking lot.  The property at 1312 N. Division Street previously 

contained a single-family home that was recently razed.  Combined, the subject land area totals 

approximately 12,834 square feet.  The property has frontage along North Division Street and West 

Wisconsin Avenue.  On the City’s Arterial/Collector Plan, Wisconsin Avenue is classified as an arterial 

street and this portion of Division Street is classified a collector street. 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification, Future Land Use Designation, and Current Land Uses:  

 

North: Zoning – R-2 Two-Family District 

Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

Current Land Use – Two-family residential home. 

 

South: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Multi-tenant buildings containing a mix of commercial uses. 

 

East: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Mix of commercial uses in a multi-tenant building. 

 

West: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Mix of commercial uses. 

 

Proposed Future Land Use Designation:  Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are sometimes 

triggered by technical corrections to omissions or errors, specific development proposals, or changing 

circumstances in the City.  In this case, a specific development proposal for the subject land area is 

necessitating the change to Mixed Use designation.  The parcel at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel #31-

6-0599-00) is already shown as Mixed Use designation on the Future Land Use Map, so the proposed 

amendment would represent an expansion of the Mixed Use designation and establish a uniform 

designation for the development area. 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 3 

 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Goals and Objectives:  The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 and 

Future Land Use Map are intended to guide City growth and development in an organized, efficient 

manner.  The Plan addresses a range of topics related to land use, housing and neighborhoods, economic 

development, transportation, utilities and community facilities, and more.  Evaluating the proposed 

amendment for consistency with relevant goals, objectives, and policies is necessary in determining if 

changes to the Future Land Use Map are appropriate.  The proposed amendment appears to be consistent 

with the following excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.5: Economic Development:  

Encourage new development and redevelopment activities that create vital and attractive neighborhoods 

and business districts.  

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use: 

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

Policy 10.1.1  Adopt, and as necessary, amend the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Chapter 15 - Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan – General Plan Primary Objective 3: 

Encourage private renovation and redevelopment that addresses existing limitations of platting and land 

assembly, site planning issues such as parking and access, and aesthetics. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The purpose of the C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District is to 

provide for mixed use areas, including a range of commercial and denser residential uses.  Development is 

intended to be pedestrian-oriented, with businesses and services that are part of the fabric of the 

neighborhood and allow residents to meet daily needs on foot, bicycle, and public transit.  Development 

standards provide added flexibility to encourage redevelopment along commercial corridors, without 

being detrimental to established residential neighborhoods.  Per Section 23-112(h) of the Municipal Code, 

the development standards for the C-1 District are listed below: 

 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 4 

 

1) Minimum lot area:  6,000 square feet. 

2) Maximum lot coverage:  90%. 

3) Minimum lot width:  40 feet. 

4) Minimum front yard:  None. 

5) Minimum rear yard:  20 feet. 

6) Minimum side yard: 

a. None. 

b. 10 feet if abutting a residentially zoned district. 

7) Maximum building height:  60 feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to establish uniform zoning, 

allow for combining of lots via CSM, and accommodate a proposed shared parking lot expansion and a 

patio addition for the existing  tavern (Maritime Tavern).  If the rezoning request is approved, any future 

development would need to conform to the C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District zoning regulations 

listed above and other applicable sections of the Zoning Ordinance.  Ultimately, Site Plan review and 

approval would be required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior to the issuance of a 

building permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Per Section 23-112(i) of the Municipal Code, the C-1 District shall be utilized in areas identified with a 

future Mixed Use designation on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map.  One of the subject 

parcels are already shown as Mixed Use designation on the Future Land Use Map, and the requested 

amendment would change 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) to Mixed Use designation as 

well. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The Future Land Use Map already identifies parcel #31-6-0599-00 (336 W. 

Wisconsin Avenue) for future mixed use.  If Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 is 

approved, to identify this entire area for future mixed uses, the rezoning request will be in 

conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 5 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  Commercial zoning already exists 

on one of the subject parcels.  A mix of commercial uses are already located west, south and 

east of the subject site.  C-1 District development standards, such as setbacks, and perimeter 

parking lot landscape buffers would be reviewed in accordance with Zoning Ordinance 

requirements at the time of Site Plan review.  Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is 

unlikely to create adverse impacts in the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied, provided Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

Amendment #1-22 is approved. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  These items appeared on the January 18, 2022 TRG agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based upon the above analysis, staff recommends the proposed City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 

2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 for the property located at 1312 N. Division Street 

(Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) from One and Two-Family Residential designation to Mixed Use designation and 

resolution, BE APPROVED; and 

 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #1-22 to rezone the subject parcels located 

at 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) and 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel #31-6-0599-00) 

from C-2 General Commercial District and R-1C Central City Residential District to C-1 Neighborhood 

Mixed Use District, including to the centerline of the adjacent North Division Street and West Wisconsin 

Avenue right-of-way, as shown on the attached map, BE APPROVED. 

 

NOTE:  If approved, Rezoning #1-22 will be reported out at the same Common Council meeting as the 

proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment #1-22 to accurately reflect the change in future land use from 

One and Two-Family Residential designation to Mixed Use designation. 



6-0
10

6
6-0

10
5

5-0
781

-15-0782

6-0645

6-0642

6-06416-0640

6-0643

6-0638

6-0602

6-0605

6-0606

6-0
94

1

6-0639

6-0649

6-0646

6-0644

6-0647

6-0648

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0
63

4

6-0
63

8-1

6-0609

6-0610

6-0613

6-0611

6-0608

6-0607

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

6-0942

6-0949

6-0946

6-0945

6-0950

6-0953

5-0778

5-0779

5-0780 6-0
10

1
6-0104

6-0
09

8

6-0
09

7

6-0
10

0

6-0096

6-00936-00945-0
78

1

5-0776

5-0
78

6

5-0
78

4

5-0783 N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

N 
CL

AR
K S

T
W WISCONSIN AV

N 
CL

AR
K S

T

C-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

R-1CR-2

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1B

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
STN 

RI
CH

MO
ND

 ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and 
C-2 General Commercial District to 

C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 Feet
City Plan Commission

2-9-2022



333343 339337345

324336342

13
24

13
18

13
12 13

18
.5

13
24

.5

13
25

-27
13

19
13

19
.5 6-0602

6-0605

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

W WISCONSIN AV

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial District to 
C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

0 50 10025 Feet



W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential to Mixed Use

0 100 200
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
One and Two-Family Residential Mixed-Use



RESOLUTION 

CITY OF APPLETON 

 

ADOPTION OF THE RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF APPLETON PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton pursuant to Section 62.23 of 

the Wisconsin Statutes, has established a City Plan Commission; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 3, 2010, the Common Council adopted the City of Appleton 

Comprehensive Plan to promote public health, safety and welfare of the City by effectively 

guiding long-range growth and development within the city and its statutory extraterritorial 

planning jurisdiction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, of 

the Comprehensive Plan was created in the City of Appleton Code of Ordinances to provide 

procedures and criteria for amending and updating the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public were invited to make comments at a meeting held on 

February 9, 2022, by the City Plan Commission, wherein the following Comprehensive Plan 

amendment (Amendment #1-22) herein adopted were reviewed and commented upon by 

members of the public; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed the recommended 

amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map at a meeting held on February 9, 

2022; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the following 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments, found these amendments to meet the criteria outlined in 

Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, warranting inclusion in 

this resolution: 

 

1. Having been filed with the City Clerk by the City of Appleton Community and 

Economic Development Department requesting a Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment to change future land use designations for specified property 

(Parcel #31-6-0598-00) on the Future Land Use Map from One and Two-Family 

Residential Use to Mixed Use. 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public, adjacent and nearby local governmental units will 

be given a 30-day review and comment period prior to the public hearing, which will be 

conducted by the Common Council for the Comprehensive Plan proposed amendment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Common Council will decide whether to 

adopt by ordinance the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 



 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be used as the basis for, among other things, 

updating the zoning ordinance, accomplishing extra-territorial zoning and as a guide for 

approving or disapproving actions affecting growth and development within the jurisdiction of 

the City of Appleton; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan may from time to time be amended, extended, or 

added to in greater detail; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Appleton Plan Commission 

that the recommended Comprehensive Plan amendments are hereby adopted as a part of the City 

of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 pursuant to §66.1001(4), Wis. Stats. and that the 

Plan Commission recommends said Comprehensive Plan amendments to the City of Appleton 

Common Council for adoption by ordinance, after a 30-day public review and comment period 

and public hearing. 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

   

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 



PARCEL #6-0599: 
 
PART OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO 
APPLETON, SAID PLAT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 
23, T21N-R17E, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 23, T21N-R17E; THENCE S89°38'52”W, 
1147.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE 
N00°06'37”W, 37.02 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST WISCONSIN AVENUE AND 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S89°40'40”W, 62.20 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY; 
THENCE N00°02'15”W, 106.95 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 2 OF THE PLAT OF 
HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO APPLETON; THENCE N89°40'59”E, 62.07 FEET TO 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE S00°06'37”E, 106.94 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 2 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE-HALF (1/2) RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF WEST WISCONSIN AVENUE. 
 
PARCEL CONTAINS 6,645 SQUARE FEET / 0.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
PARCEL #6-0598: 
 
PART OF LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO 
APPLETON, SAID PLAT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 
23, T21N-R17E, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 23, T21N-R17E; THENCE S89°38'52”W, 
1147.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE 
N00°06'37”W, 143.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S89°40'59”W, 123.87 FEET TO 
THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF NORTH DIVISION STREET; THENCE N00°07'12”W, 50.00 FEET 
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND 
PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO APPLETON; THENCE N89°40'59”E, 123.88 FEET ALONG NORTH LINE 
OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF SAID PLAT; THENCE S00°06'37”E, 50.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 2 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE-HALF (1/2) RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF NORTH DIVISION STREET. 
 
PARCEL CONTAINS 6,194 SQUARE FEET / 0.14 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  2 Bucks Only II, LLC (Parcel #31-6-0598-00, 1312 N. Division Street) and 2X6 Holdings, LLC 

(Parcel #31-6-0599-00, 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue) 

 

Applicant:  Mach IV Engineering & Surveying, LLC c/o Joel Ehrfurth 

 

Address/Parcel:  1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) and 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel 

#31-6-0599-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting to amend the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

Future Land Use Map from the One and Two-Family Residential designation to the Mixed Use 

designation for the property located at 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00).  In conjunction 

with this request, the applicant is proposing to rezone both subject parcels from C-2 General Commercial 

District and R-1C Central City Residential District to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District.  The 

requests are being made to establish a uniform Future Land Use Map designation and zoning 

classification for the subject property to allow for a shared parking lot expansion and a patio addition for 

the existing tavern (Maritime Tavern). 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

On March 15, 2017, the Common Council approved/adopted the 5-year update to the Comprehensive 

Plan 2010-2030 and Future Land Use Map.  This plan establishes a vision for future land use, physical 

development, and quality of life in the City and provides a comprehensive set of goals, policies, and 

initiatives to achieve that vision.  The Comprehensive Plan document and the accompanying Future Land 

Use Map also serve as a guide for future growth and development in the City.  Periodically, development 

proposals or changing circumstances within the City may trigger consideration of an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  That is the case for this request. 

 

The property at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue is currently being used as a tavern (Maritime Tavern) and off-

street parking lot.  The property at 1312 N. Division Street previously contained a single-family home that 

was recently razed.  The home was recently purchased by the current owners with plans to construct an 

expansion to the existing parking lot serving Maritime Tavern at 336 W. Wisconsin and constructing an 

outdoor patio onto the tavern. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Meeting Date:  February 9, 2022 

 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  March 16, 2022 

(Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning) 

 

Items:  City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land 

Use Map Amendment #1-22 and Rezoning #1-22 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 2 

 

In conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan amendment and rezoning requests, submittal of an 

application for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) is anticipated to combine the subject parcels into one lot.  

CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City staff.  However, per Section 23-40(b) of the 

Municipal Code, there shall not be more than one zoning district on any parcel of land.  Therefore, 

uniform zoning is needed before the parcels can be combined to accommodate the anticipated 

improvements. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Procedural Findings: When Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning applications are required for the same development project, the respective staff reports are 

consolidated together as one. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The property at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue is currently being used as a tavern 

(Maritime Tavern) and off-street parking lot.  The property at 1312 N. Division Street previously 

contained a single-family home that was recently razed.  Combined, the subject land area totals 

approximately 12,834 square feet.  The property has frontage along North Division Street and West 

Wisconsin Avenue.  On the City’s Arterial/Collector Plan, Wisconsin Avenue is classified as an arterial 

street and this portion of Division Street is classified a collector street. 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification, Future Land Use Designation, and Current Land Uses:  

 

North: Zoning – R-2 Two-Family District 

Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

Current Land Use – Two-family residential home. 

 

South: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Multi-tenant buildings containing a mix of commercial uses. 

 

East: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Mix of commercial uses in a multi-tenant building. 

 

West: Zoning – C-2 General Commercial District 

Future Land Use Designation – Mixed Use 

Current Land Use – Mix of commercial uses. 

 

Proposed Future Land Use Designation:  Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are sometimes 

triggered by technical corrections to omissions or errors, specific development proposals, or changing 

circumstances in the City.  In this case, a specific development proposal for the subject land area is 

necessitating the change to Mixed Use designation.  The parcel at 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel #31-

6-0599-00) is already shown as Mixed Use designation on the Future Land Use Map, so the proposed 

amendment would represent an expansion of the Mixed Use designation and establish a uniform 

designation for the development area. 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 3 

 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Goals and Objectives:  The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 and 

Future Land Use Map are intended to guide City growth and development in an organized, efficient 

manner.  The Plan addresses a range of topics related to land use, housing and neighborhoods, economic 

development, transportation, utilities and community facilities, and more.  Evaluating the proposed 

amendment for consistency with relevant goals, objectives, and policies is necessary in determining if 

changes to the Future Land Use Map are appropriate.  The proposed amendment appears to be consistent 

with the following excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.5: Economic Development:  

Encourage new development and redevelopment activities that create vital and attractive neighborhoods 

and business districts.  

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use: 

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

Policy 10.1.1  Adopt, and as necessary, amend the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Chapter 15 - Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Plan – General Plan Primary Objective 3: 

Encourage private renovation and redevelopment that addresses existing limitations of platting and land 

assembly, site planning issues such as parking and access, and aesthetics. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The purpose of the C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District is to 

provide for mixed use areas, including a range of commercial and denser residential uses.  Development is 

intended to be pedestrian-oriented, with businesses and services that are part of the fabric of the 

neighborhood and allow residents to meet daily needs on foot, bicycle, and public transit.  Development 

standards provide added flexibility to encourage redevelopment along commercial corridors, without 

being detrimental to established residential neighborhoods.  Per Section 23-112(h) of the Municipal Code, 

the development standards for the C-1 District are listed below: 

 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 4 

 

1) Minimum lot area:  6,000 square feet. 

2) Maximum lot coverage:  90%. 

3) Minimum lot width:  40 feet. 

4) Minimum front yard:  None. 

5) Minimum rear yard:  20 feet. 

6) Minimum side yard: 

a. None. 

b. 10 feet if abutting a residentially zoned district. 

7) Maximum building height:  60 feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to establish uniform zoning, 

allow for combining of lots via CSM, and accommodate a proposed shared parking lot expansion and a 

patio addition for the existing  tavern (Maritime Tavern).  If the rezoning request is approved, any future 

development would need to conform to the C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District zoning regulations 

listed above and other applicable sections of the Zoning Ordinance.  Ultimately, Site Plan review and 

approval would be required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior to the issuance of a 

building permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Per Section 23-112(i) of the Municipal Code, the C-1 District shall be utilized in areas identified with a 

future Mixed Use designation on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map.  One of the subject 

parcels are already shown as Mixed Use designation on the Future Land Use Map, and the requested 

amendment would change 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) to Mixed Use designation as 

well. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The Future Land Use Map already identifies parcel #31-6-0599-00 (336 W. 

Wisconsin Avenue) for future mixed use.  If Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 is 

approved, to identify this entire area for future mixed uses, the rezoning request will be in 

conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 



Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 & Rezoning #1-22 

February 9, 2022 

Page 5 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  Commercial zoning already exists 

on one of the subject parcels.  A mix of commercial uses are already located west, south and 

east of the subject site.  C-1 District development standards, such as setbacks, and perimeter 

parking lot landscape buffers would be reviewed in accordance with Zoning Ordinance 

requirements at the time of Site Plan review.  Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is 

unlikely to create adverse impacts in the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied, provided Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

Amendment #1-22 is approved. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  These items appeared on the January 18, 2022 TRG agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based upon the above analysis, staff recommends the proposed City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 

2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #1-22 for the property located at 1312 N. Division Street 

(Tax Id #31-6-0598-00) from One and Two-Family Residential designation to Mixed Use designation and 

resolution, BE APPROVED; and 

 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #1-22 to rezone the subject parcels located 

at 1312 N. Division Street (Parcel #31-6-0598-00) and 336 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Parcel #31-6-0599-00) 

from C-2 General Commercial District and R-1C Central City Residential District to C-1 Neighborhood 

Mixed Use District, including to the centerline of the adjacent North Division Street and West Wisconsin 

Avenue right-of-way, as shown on the attached map, BE APPROVED. 

 

NOTE:  If approved, Rezoning #1-22 will be reported out at the same Common Council meeting as the 

proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment #1-22 to accurately reflect the change in future land use from 

One and Two-Family Residential designation to Mixed Use designation. 



6-0
10

6
6-0

10
5

5-0
781

-15-0782

6-0645

6-0642

6-06416-0640

6-0643

6-0638

6-0602

6-0605

6-0606

6-0
94

1

6-0639

6-0649

6-0646

6-0644

6-0647

6-0648

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0
63

4

6-0
63

8-1

6-0609

6-0610

6-0613

6-0611

6-0608

6-0607

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

6-0942

6-0949

6-0946

6-0945

6-0950

6-0953

5-0778

5-0779

5-0780 6-0
10

1
6-0104

6-0
09

8

6-0
09

7

6-0
10

0

6-0096

6-00936-00945-0
78

1

5-0776

5-0
78

6

5-0
78

4

5-0783 N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

N 
CL

AR
K S

T
W WISCONSIN AV

N 
CL

AR
K S

T

C-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1C

R-1CR-2

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-1B

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
STN 

RI
CH

MO
ND

 ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

N 
ON

EI
DA

 S
T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and 
C-2 General Commercial District to 

C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 Feet
City Plan Commission

2-9-2022



333343 339337345

324336342

13
24

13
18

13
12 13

18
.5

13
24

.5

13
25

-27
13

19
13

19
.5 6-0602

6-0605

6-0598
6-0

59
9

6-0604

6-0603

6-0
60

0

6-0
59

7

N 
DI

VIS
IO

N 
ST

W WISCONSIN AV

Maritime Bar Expansion
Rezoning

R-1C Central City Residential District and C-2 General Commercial District to 
C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use District

Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

0 50 10025 Feet



W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Maritime Bar Expansion
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential to Mixed Use

0 100 200
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
2-9-2022

W SUMMER ST

W WISCONSIN AV

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

N 
SU

PE
RI

OR
 S

T

N A
LV

IN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

N 
CL

AR
K 

ST

N 
HA

RR
IM

AN
 S

T

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
One and Two-Family Residential Mixed-Use



RESOLUTION 

CITY OF APPLETON 

 

ADOPTION OF THE RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF APPLETON PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton pursuant to Section 62.23 of 

the Wisconsin Statutes, has established a City Plan Commission; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 3, 2010, the Common Council adopted the City of Appleton 

Comprehensive Plan to promote public health, safety and welfare of the City by effectively 

guiding long-range growth and development within the city and its statutory extraterritorial 

planning jurisdiction; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, of 

the Comprehensive Plan was created in the City of Appleton Code of Ordinances to provide 

procedures and criteria for amending and updating the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public were invited to make comments at a meeting held on 

February 9, 2022, by the City Plan Commission, wherein the following Comprehensive Plan 

amendment (Amendment #1-22) herein adopted were reviewed and commented upon by 

members of the public; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed the recommended 

amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map at a meeting held on February 9, 

2022; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the following 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments, found these amendments to meet the criteria outlined in 

Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, warranting inclusion in 

this resolution: 

 

1. Having been filed with the City Clerk by the City of Appleton Community and 

Economic Development Department requesting a Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment to change future land use designations for specified property 

(Parcel #31-6-0598-00) on the Future Land Use Map from One and Two-Family 

Residential Use to Mixed Use. 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public, adjacent and nearby local governmental units will 

be given a 30-day review and comment period prior to the public hearing, which will be 

conducted by the Common Council for the Comprehensive Plan proposed amendment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Common Council will decide whether to 

adopt by ordinance the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 



 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be used as the basis for, among other things, 

updating the zoning ordinance, accomplishing extra-territorial zoning and as a guide for 

approving or disapproving actions affecting growth and development within the jurisdiction of 

the City of Appleton; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan may from time to time be amended, extended, or 

added to in greater detail; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Appleton Plan Commission 

that the recommended Comprehensive Plan amendments are hereby adopted as a part of the City 

of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 pursuant to §66.1001(4), Wis. Stats. and that the 

Plan Commission recommends said Comprehensive Plan amendments to the City of Appleton 

Common Council for adoption by ordinance, after a 30-day public review and comment period 

and public hearing. 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

   

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 



PARCEL #6-0599: 
 
PART OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO 
APPLETON, SAID PLAT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 
23, T21N-R17E, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 23, T21N-R17E; THENCE S89°38'52”W, 
1147.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE 
N00°06'37”W, 37.02 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST WISCONSIN AVENUE AND 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S89°40'40”W, 62.20 FEET ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY; 
THENCE N00°02'15”W, 106.95 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 2 OF THE PLAT OF 
HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO APPLETON; THENCE N89°40'59”E, 62.07 FEET TO 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE S00°06'37”E, 106.94 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 2 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE-HALF (1/2) RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF WEST WISCONSIN AVENUE. 
 
PARCEL CONTAINS 6,645 SQUARE FEET / 0.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
PARCEL #6-0598: 
 
PART OF LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO 
APPLETON, SAID PLAT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 
23, T21N-R17E, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE FULLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 23, T21N-R17E; THENCE S89°38'52”W, 
1147.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE 
N00°06'37”W, 143.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S89°40'59”W, 123.87 FEET TO 
THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF NORTH DIVISION STREET; THENCE N00°07'12”W, 50.00 FEET 
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 OF THE PLAT OF HARRIMAN AND 
PARKHURST'S ADDITION TO APPLETON; THENCE N89°40'59”E, 123.88 FEET ALONG NORTH LINE 
OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF SAID PLAT; THENCE S00°06'37”E, 50.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 2 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE-HALF (1/2) RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF NORTH DIVISION STREET. 
 
PARCEL CONTAINS 6,194 SQUARE FEET / 0.14 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 






	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_City Plan Minutes 1-26-22
	0002_1_ClassIIPublicHearingNoticeNewspaper_MaritimeBar_CompPlanAmend1-22
	0002_2_InformalPublicHearingNotice_MaritimeBar_CompPlan+Rezoning
	0003_1_InformalPublicHearingNotice_MaritimeBar_CompPlan+Rezoning
	0004_1_StaffReport_Maritime Bar_CompPlan+Rezoning_For02-09-22
	1892-01-21 ENG C1 EC
	1892-01-21 ENG C2 PC

	0005_1_StaffReport_Maritime Bar_CompPlan+Rezoning_For02-09-22
	1892-01-21 ENG C1 EC
	1892-01-21 ENG C2 PC


